
 

Delaware River Trail – On-Road Section – Washington to Spring Garden 

Request for Bids for Construction 

Issued: 10/14/19 

Answers to Bidders’ Questions: 

1) Item 9000-5000 E&S Control (LS)       

Please either provide items and approximate quantities to bid for the various items (inlet protection, 

filter sock, etc.) or bid as a PDA.  Without an itemized breakdown, bids will not be comparable. 

RESPONSE: For the purposes of this bid, assume a PDA of $175,000.    

2) GPIS Permits 

Please verify if GPIS Permits have been obtained (City's equivalent to a HOP typically submitted 

during design phase).  If not, will it be the contractor's responsibility to obtain the GPIS Permits? 

RESPONSE: No permits have been obtained from the Philadelphia Streets Department as of yet. 

While the engineer (NV5) will be responsible for the design approval through the Streets Department 

and PennDOT, the contractor will be responsible for the Street Closure Permits, GPIS, and any other 

construction permits.   

3) ADA Designs 

Please clarify if ADA designs have been submitted/approved by PSD and PennDOT. 

RESPONSE: ADA Ramp designs are being submitted to PSD and PennDOT for approvals prior to the 

start of construction. 

 4) Police Officer Assistance 

Please provide a PDA for Police Officer Assistance, which may be required by the Streets Department 

through the lane closure application. 

RESPONSE: Please do not include a PDA for Police Officer Assistance.  Any need for this resource will 

be added at a later date.   

5) 4-1040 Engineering Services (PSD) 



Please provide a PDA as stated in the specification. 

RESPONSE: Please use $1500 per day for Item 4-1040, and $1000 per day for item 4-1041.   

6) Interconnect 

Please verify 4” PVC will be acceptable as 4” Steel conduit has been recently required by the PSD. 

RESPONSE: Please bid the interconnect as shown in the plans.    

7) Project Schedule (Pg 104 on MPT Plan) 

Even with rapid mobilization, the project deadline of August 15, 2020 for all utility, signal conduit, 

curbline, and any other work within Columbus Cartway is not practical.  The limits would stretch the 

entire length of the project and include most of the project scope.  Furthermore, there are other 

factors such as final plan approvals, ADA plans, and long lead items such as mast arms required at 

reconfigured intersections.   The requested work required in approximately 9 months, including 

winter months, does not align with the bid form project schedule of 18 to 24 months.  

RESPONSE:  Please include your recommendation for construction phasing and scheduling to meet 

as close to the project deadline for all curbing and trenching within the bed of Columbus Boulevard.  

All work inside of the newly constructed curbline can be ongoing during or after repaving of the 

Boulevard.   

8) Draft Construction Sequence 

Please provide approximate status/anticipated date of the following items that will need to be known 

for the draft construction sequence.  Final plan approvals (Grading, ADA Ramp Design, Signal, etc.), 

PennDOT HOP Permit, City of Philadelphia GPIS Permit. 

RESPONSE: All design plan approvals from PSD, PennDOT, PWD, and DEP are anticipated by 

February 2020.     

9) PennDOT Inspection Costs 

Please verify PennDOT inspection costs will be paid directly by DRWC or please provide a PDA for 

PennDOT inspection costs. 

RESPONSE: We do not anticipate the need for additional inspection. DRWC will assume costs if 

obligated.      

10) Washington Ave Connector Work    

Please verify the work is to be included in the proposal and accounted for in bid items (i.e. 

mountable curb median islands). 



RESPONSE: Yes, the “interim” Washington Avenue Connector work that is shown in the plans will be 

performed as a part of this project prior to PennDOT repaving of Columbus Boulevard.  The bid item 

quantities account for this work.    

 

 

  

11) Relocation items 

Please provide the additional information, as stated in the spec, for the relocation items (9000-

1421,1422,1424). 

RESPONSE: These items are currently being refined by the designer.  Please bid with the information 

provided.  The awarded contractor will have the opportunity to provide an updated price for these 

items once design is completed.   

12) Clean Fill Item 

Please provide an item for clean fill, which will be required in the curbline bumpout areas. 

RESPONSE: Assume excavation from the area between Chestnut Street and Market Street (site of 

former scissor ramps) to be used for any fill on the project.    

13) Item 9000-3008 Irrigation Renovation (At Hilton) 

Please provide a plan or specification for proposed irrigation renovation. 

RESPONSE: This is a design build item per the notes on Planting and Furnishing Plans 8 and 9. 

Please see the attached referenced existing irrigation plans referenced in the same notes. 

14) 0811-0003 Temporary protective fence        

Please clarify the intent for this item.  Is it to follow the specified PennDOT Section 811 including 

orange construction fencing or include 6’ High Chain Link Fence Panels as sown on the MPT typical 

sections. 

 RESPONSE: Please assume 6’ chain link fence panels.  

15) Decorative sawcut Concrete Joints 

Please clarify if sidewalk control joints are required to be sawcut as detailed on Roadway Plan 16.  If 

so, please add this requirement to the specification. 

 RESPONSE: Control joints shall be sawcut.  Please revise the Special Provision for Item 0676-0001 

to the following: 



ITEM 0676-0001  CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK, SQUARE YARD 

A. This item shall comply with Section 676 of the PennDOT Standard Highway 

Specifications, with the following exceptions: 

Revise Section 676.3 (d) to state: 

 

As specified in Section 1001.3.  

Place concrete 4 inches deep. Strike off, finish, and test, as specified in 

Sections 501.3(k) and (p), except that  

manual operations are allowed and a light broom finish applied.  

Form outside edges and joints with a 1/4-inch radius-edging tool.  

Transverse dummy joints shall be sawcut at 5-foot intervals, approximately 

1/4 inch wide, and at least 1 inch deep. 

 

Payment for this item shall only include the concrete sidewalk.  The subbase 

will be paid separately.   

 

16) Granite Pavers & Brick Pavers on Concrete (9000-1006 & 9000-1013) 

Please verify item quantities as they appear to be overstated. 

RESPONSE: The quantity was in error. 9000-1006, Granite Pavers on Concrete Sub-Base, totals 450 

Square Yards; 9000-1013, Brick Pavers on Concrete Sub-Base, totals 533 Square Yards. Please see 

attached corrected Bid Form. 

17) Granite Pavers on Concrete Sub-base (9000-1006) 

Please clarify as it appears this item is for tree pits, which detail stone fines. 

RESPONSE: Refer to the answer given to Question 16. Note that 9000-1006 is only for granite 

pavers at Spruce Street Harbor Park as shown in the drawings. All trees will use the detail shown on 

Landscape Details, Sheet 125, Street Tree Planting, which does not indicate Stone fines, but mulch. 

Please disregard the ‘Granite Cobble at Tree Pit’ detail.  

18) Conrail Requirements 

Please provide required information needed for Railroad Protective Insurance Premiums (Passenger 

of Freight, number of trains per day, speed of trains). 

RESPONSE: Trains are freight only.  Per Conrail: Plan for roughly 2 trains per day operating in the 

area at speeds no greater than 10 MPH.     

19) Bid Price     

As plans are not finalized please verify contract will be based on proposed unit prices and not as 

lump sum. 

RESPONSE: Bids shall use the bid spreadsheet with the indication of measurement for each item. 



 20) Item 9000-1001 Concrete Base for ADA Directional Indicator Block 

Please clarify if the concrete base is incidental (as stated in the slab section of the specification) or 

will be paid under the driveway/sidewalk items (as stated in the measurement and payment section 

of the specification) 

RESPONSE: Per the Measurement and Payment section of Item 9000-1001: Concrete base for the 

block shall be paid under the appropriate driveway or sidewalk bid items.    

21) Rough Granite Cobble Edging (9000-1022) 

Please verify paver edging is required.  If so, please include in the specification. 

RESPONSE: No metal edging will be required for the Rough Granite Cobble (9000-1022). 

22) 6" Concrete ADA Ramps      

Please clarify if 6” of concrete will be required for ADA ramps. 

RESPONSE: Please refer to Section C-C on sheet 15 of the plans.   

23) Fire Hydrant (9000-1509) 

Please verify the item is inclusive of all materials shown on the utility details (sleeves, pipe, valve, 

hydrant, CCL) 

RESPONSE: Yes, the bid item for Fire Hydrant will include all appurtenances to complete the 

connection, including the sleeve and ductile iron pipe.   

24) Timber Piles 

Please provide a VF pay item for timber piles.  

RESPONSE: Assume 20 vertical feet per pile.  

25) Pile Cap (MH and Pipe) 

Please provide items, if required for pile cap support for manholes and pipe. 

RESPONSE: Please refer to the details on sheet 60 of the plans.   

26) Granite Curb item 

Please provide an item for granite curb as called for at Dockside. 

RESPONSE: Please see attached revised Bid Form for Item Number 9000-1025 Flush Granite Curb. 

 



 27) Mountable Curb 

Please provide a mountable curb item for the curb at STA 143. 

RESPONSE: Disregard this item for this bid.   

28) Restoration of Demo Contract 

Please clarify proposed final restoration for the Tramway Removal contract. 

RESPONSE: Restore to prior condition, asphalt. 
 

Item 9000-1006 – granite pavers on concrete base. Is this item sy or sf 

RESPONSE: Square yards. Please reference corrected bid form. 

1.   Can the detectable warning surfaces be changed to polymer composite from the Cast Iron? 

RESPONSE: No, these must remain cast iron as described in the specifications.  

2.   Can Item 0411-0681 be changed to a PG76-22 SRL – H material since that is what is on 

Delaware Ave now and what will be specified when this portion will be milling and paved. 

RESPONSE: For the purposes of this bid, the following item will be allowed as a substitute to Item No. 

0411-0681: 

ITEM 0411-0782: SUPERPAVE ASPHALT MIXTURE DESIGN, WMA WEARING COURSE, PG 76-22, 10 

TO < 30 MILLION ESALS, 9.5 MM MIX, 1 1/2" DEPTH, SRL-H 

The quantity and specification shall remain the same.   

3.   Will temporary chain link fence be required on this project? If so could an item be provided 

for this for the quantity? 

RESPONSE: 6’ chain link panel fencing is requested. 

4.   At the Mill & Overlay at the Rail Spur is the Epflex crossing rubber along the rail have to be 

replaced prior to the installation of the new asphalt? 



RESPONSE: There does not appear to be a rubber railseal along the spurs where the work will be 

occurring.   

5.   Can an excel bid form be provided? 

RESPONSE: Yes. It is provided as an attachment to this document 

6.   Was there any soil testing on the materials to be excavated and removed? 

RESPONSE: No soil testing was performed provided that nearly all excavation shall occur with the 

depth of pavement sections within Columbus Boulevard. 

7.   Can there be an ITEM added for tree removal with a quantity provided? 

RESPONSE: No.  Tree removals are included within the clearing and grubbing bid item. 

8.   On demolition sheet 10 there is a note for the contractor to remove trees with tree spade, 

ball and burlap for others to transport and plant off site.  Is this for all trees or certain tress?  Could 

there be an ITEM added for this and a quantity provided 

RESPONSE: This is for a total of forty (40) small caliper (under 3”) trees that are located on the east 

side of the existing sidewalk, in the area of the future I-95 CAP project. Please see attached revised 

Bid Form – this is Item Number 0808-5083. Refer to PennDOT Publication 408, Section 808 – 

Plants, Planting and Transplanting. 

9.   Can an ITEM be added for existing inlets to be removed? 

RESPONSE: Please see the attached excel bid sheet.  

1. Are there any restrictions in regard to the means and methods for demolishing the structure?  

RESPONSE: Any specific concerns about means and methods will need to be addressed on a case by 

case basis.  We cannot answer this question as this time without and context.  

2. Is the parking lot behind able to be utilized?  



RESPONSE: Yes, temporarily. 

3. Will the pedestrian walkway be closed during demolition?     

RESPONSE: Please refer to sheets 108-116 of the plans for specifics on pedestrian access and 

phasing.    

1. Please clarify for items 9000-1006 and 9000-1013 the quantities are in SY not in SF. 

RESPONSE: Square yards. Refer to the answer to Question #16 in the first set of questions. Please 

see attached revised Bid Form. 

 

2. Please clarify the thickness of the granite it for item 9000-1006; it is not specified in the 

documents.  

RESPONSE: Granite pavers for Item 1006 shall be 2-3/4” thick, as indicated in the ‘Granite Pavers 

on Concrete’ detail on Sheet 18. Please revise Item 0676-0001 to the following: 

 

2  MATERIAL 

Pavers shall be of the size and color indicated below. 

 

a) Granite Pavers 

1. As supplied by Ottey and Hoopes, 610-644-4202, or Approved Equal. 

2. Face Size: 4”x8”, 8”x8”, 8”x16”, 16”x24”, 24”x24”, cut on all sides, thermal finish on 

face. 

3. Thickness: 2-3/4”. 

4. Pattern: Random Ashlar. 

5. Colors: 

a. 60% Georgia Grey Granite 

b. 20% Greene County Granite 

c. 20% Silver Cloud Granite. 

 
 

1. Is this project tax exempt? 

RESPONSE: The project itself is not tax exempt but DRWC as a 501(c)3 is. 

2. There are bid items for inlet spread footing and pile support, will similar items be added for 

the manhole pile cap and timber piles? 

RESPONSE: Yes, there may likely be similar items added, but for this bid assume this is not 

separate. Should the costs for the piles and pile caps be broken out separately for the 

manholes, updated costs will be requested prior to NTP. 



3. Do the costs for treated timber bearing piles and concrete pile cap get included with the 15” 

VCP and 18” RCP bid items or will bid items be added? 

RESPONSE:  Ultimately, the piles and concrete pile caps for the sewers may be broken out 

separately.  For now, however, assume the costs are all included together.  Should the costs 

for the piles and pile caps be broken out separately, updated costs will be requested prior to 

NTP. 

4. Erosion Control Item 9000-5000 states contractor will further refine their costs once E&S 

plans have been approved. Interpretations on amount of E&S may vary greatly by contractor. 

Can this item be considered to be changed to an allowance for bid purposes until E&S plans 

are released? 

RESPONSE: For the purposes of this bid, assume a PDA of $175,000.    

5. What depth are the saddle connections on Utility Plan 1 into the brick sewer (unknown cover) 

for Inlets 2.2, 2.3 & 2.4? 

RESPONSE: The saddle connections are 4’-2” deep. 

6. What is the intended connection depth of the proposed 18” RCP into the 8’x9’ concrete 

sewer on Utility Plan 2? 

RESPONSE: 4’-2”, an invert of +3.55.  

7. What is the intended saddle connection depth of the proposed 15” VCP into the 4’x4’ 

concrete sewer on Utility Plan 4? 

RESPONSE: PWD has no sewer record for this sewer. Assumed similar depth of recieving 

sewer as adjacent sewers of the same size 4’-2” deep. The receiving sewer is 8’-2” deep.  

8. What is the proposed invert of the VCP manhole connection from Inlet 11.2? 

RESPONSE: PWD has not been able to provide a record plan for this manhole thus far, 

however given the information available from the survey the invert of the connection would 

be approximately elevation 1.5. 

9. Inlets 11.3, 11.4 & 11.5 are shown to tie into 18” VCP, should these connections be 

included in the 18” x 15” RCP WYE bid item?? 

RESPONSE: Bidders may break these VCP wye connections out separately. 

10. Utility Plan 6 shows an existing 24” RCP sewer with unknown cover that we’re to tie Inlets 

14.2, 14.3, 14.4 & 14.5 to, while Utility Plan 7 labels that same pipe as an 18” RCP with 

5’11” cover. Please confirm what size sewer we’re making WYE connections to and the 

estimated cover. 

RESPONSE: No sewer record for this sewer. Assumed similar depth of recieving sewer as 

adjacent sewers of the same size.  The RCP sewer changes size, 24” is correct, with 6’-6” 

cover.   

11. What is the estimated cover of the existing 30” RCP on Utility Plans 8 & 9 to receive saddle 

connections?  

RESPONSE: PWD has no sewer record for this sewer. Assumed similar depth of recieving 

sewer as adjacent sewers of the same size (5’-2”)   

12. What is the depth of connection to the 42” Brick Sewer for Inlet 52.2? 

RESPONSE: PWD has no sewer record for this sewer. Assumed similar depth of recieving 

sewer as adjacent sewers of the same size (3”-3”)   

13. What is the depth of wye connection in Columbus Blvd to the 18” RCP for Inlet 56.2? 

RESPONSE: 5’-2” 



14. For disposal costs of excavated material, is the material considered PA Certified Clean? 

RESPONSE: Assume the excavated material is considered clean. 

15. Is there a Geotech report showing estimated groundwater elevations we may encounter 

during construction? 

RESPONSE: A report cannot be provided at this time, however borings taken for the design of 

the proposed off-road trail segment south of Washington Avenue revealed groundwater at a 

depth of approximately 6 feet, and borings taken prior to the construction of the Penn Street 

Trail (the constructed portion of trail along Delaware Avenue that begins at Spring Garden 

Street) revealed a groundwater at a depth of approximately 5 feet.   

 

 


